
 

 

Western Sierra Charter School 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Tuesday, September 14, 2021 
Open Session Board Meeting – 2:00 PM 

 

This meeting will be by teleconference pursuant to Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20.  
 

The Western Sierra Charter Schools (WSCS) Board of Directors (Board) and employees of WSCS shall meet via the Zoom 
meeting platform. Members of the public who wish to access this Board meeting may do so at: 

https://www.facebook.com/wscsfamily/live 
 

Members of the public who wish to make written comment to the Board for this meeting should make their written 
request at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at: 

http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-request.html 
 

Members of the public who wish to make live, spoken comment during this meeting should make their written request at 

least 24 hours prior to the meeting at: http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-request.html.  Public will remain muted 

until appropriate time. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. If an interpreter is needed for comments, 
they will be translated to English and the time limit shall be six (6) minutes. The Board of Directors may limit the total time 
for public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a member of the public if 
comments or actions disrupts the Board meeting. 
 

Access to Board Materials: A copy of the written materials which will be submitted to the WSCS Board may be reviewed by 

any interested persons on http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-agenda-and-minutes.html website along with this 
agenda following the posting of the agenda at least 72 hours in advance of this meeting. 
 

Disability Access: Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this public meeting 

should be made 24 hours prior to the meeting at http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-request.html. All efforts will 

be made for reasonable accommodations. The agenda and public documents can be modified upon request as required by 
Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 

AGENDA 
1.    Call to Order 
 

2.    Roll Call to Establish Quorum 
 

3.   *Action: Board Meeting Agenda for September 14, 2021 
 

4.  *Action: Minutes from August 11, 2021 
 

5.  *Action: Reassign Tiffany Schutz as Community Representative for Endeavor Charter School 
 

6.    Introduce Shantal Fossee and Lyndsay Haussler as potential new WSCS Board members from  
 Endeavor Charter School. 
 

Closed Session 
 a). Consideration of new board members 
 

Open Session 
 

7.    Report from Closed Session 
 

8.   *Action: Regarding New WSCS Board Members 
 

9.   *Action: Selection of Staff Liaisons to the Board for 2021-2022 
 

10.    Selection of Board Officers for 2021-2022 (Chair, Secretary, Treasurer) 
 

11.    Hearing of Persons Wishing to Address the Board 
 

12.    Written Communications (if any) 

https://www.facebook.com/wscsfamily/live
http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-request.html
http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-request.html
http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-agenda-and-minutes.html
http://www.wscsfamily.org/board-request.html


 

 

 

13.   *Action: warrant reports for 6/5/21 through 6/30/21 and 7/1/21 through 9/7/21. 
 

14.    Public Hearing: Independent Study Policy for all WSCS Schools 
Open Public Hearing: No earlier than: 2:00 PM 

In accordance with Section 11701 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations,  setting policy 
pursuant to Education Code section 51747, the Board shall consider, in a public hearing, the scope 
of its existing or prospective use of independent study as an instructional strategy, its purposes in 
authorizing independent study, and factors bearing specifically on the maximum realistic lengths 
of assignments and acceptable number of missed assignments for specific populations of pupils or 
adult education students. This policy shall reflect an awareness that excessive leniency in its terms 
can result in pupils falling so far behind their age peers as to increase, rather than decrease, the 
risk of their dropping out of school. 
 

15.  *Action: Amendment to the Independent Study Policy 21/22-001-A for all WSCS Schools 
 

16.  *Action: Amendment to the Admissions and Enrollment Policy 
 

17.  *Action: Amendment to Allocation Policy 
 

18.  *Action: Purchase of Storage Shed 
 

19.  *Action: Reserve Adjustment Resolution 
 

20.  *Action: Resolution #2021-2022-04 Fund Balance Transfer to Endeavor Charter School 
 

21.   Discussion: Policies Required for Federal Funds Related to the Change of ELO Funds 
 

22.    Reports 
a). Executive Directors Report – Michael Cox 
 1). Reports 

 b). CBO Report – Jody Jeffers 
  1). Budget update 

c). Endeavor Principal’s Report – Eric Hagen 
 

 d). Mountain Home School/Glacier High Principal’s Report – Mindy Klang 
 

23.   *Action: Calendar Board Meetings for the 2021-2022 School Year 
 

24.    Next Scheduled Board Meeting Tuesday, November 9, 2021. 
 

25.   *Adjournment 



 

 

Western Sierra Charter School 
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, August 11 2021, 2:00 PM 
Meeting was conducted via Zoom and streamed via Facebook Live. 

 

1.    Call to Order 
Brian Fulce called the meeting to order at 2:05 PM  

 

2.    Roll Call to Establish Quorum 
 Quorum established. 

Board Members Present: Tamara Dent, Brian Fulce, Monika Moulin,  
Tiffany Schutz, and Darin Soukup 

 Absent: None 
WSCS Staff Present: Michael Cox, Eric Hagen, Jody Jeffers, Nancy Garcia, Mindy Klang,  

and Diane Neulinger 
 WSCS Staff Liaison Present: Margaret Den Hartog and Joyce Vind 
 

3.   *Action: Special Board Meeting Agenda for August 11, 2021. 
 Approved 
 

 Motion: Darin Soukup  Second: Monika Moulin  Vote: 4 yes, 0 no, 1 absent 
 

4.   *Approve Board Minutes from June 15, 2021 Board Meeting 
 Approved 
 

 Motion: Tiffany Schutz Second: Darin Soukup   Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
 

5.    Hearing of Persons Wishing to Address the Board 
 None 
 

6.    Written Communications (if any) 
 None 
 

7.    Public Hearing: Independent Study Policy - Open to public @ 2:09 PM. Closed public hearing @ 2:27 PM. 

Open Public Hearing: No earlier than: 2:00 PM 
In accordance with Section 11701 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations,  setting policy pursuant 
to Education Code section 51747, the Board shall consider, in a public hearing, the scope of its existing or 
prospective use of independent study as an instructional strategy, its purposes in authorizing 
independent study, and factors bearing specifically on the maximum realistic lengths of assignments and 
acceptable number of missed assignments for specific populations of pupils or adult education students. 
This policy shall reflect an awareness that excessive leniency in its terms can result in pupils falling so far 
behind their age peers as to increase, rather than decrease, the risk of their dropping out of school. 
 

 Michael Cox read the policy into the record. This policy requires board approval as we are looking to 
meet new mandates. 
 AB 130 requires additional elements of school engagement on a daily basis. Daily Synchronous 
Instruction for TK-3 by the Advising Teacher, weekly for 4-8 with live interaction and weekly 9-12 by the 
teacher of record. 
 Teacher of record has to be able to monitor the student’s weekly attendance. If there are 3 or more 
missed days, they must start a three-tiered re-engagement plan. Step one: reach out via phone call or 



 

 

email, step two: ask the parent if they need any help recording attendance or with instruction, step three: 
begin an evaluation process. Our IS already answers all of these issues. 
 
 Changes made to the policy: 

Item 1: max time – 20 days for assignments 
  Item 2: number of assignments missed before re-engagement 
  Item2b: (new) evaluate student progress 
  Item 3: (new) curriculum aligned with courses 
  Item 4: Tiered re-engagement 
  Item 4 (a,b,c,d): requirement of re-engagement 
  Item 5: (new) Live Instruction. TK-3 we must offer the “opportunity” for daily instruction by their 
Advising Teacher. This can be in-person, via internet or on the phone. This is voluntary for the student and 
will not affect their attendance record. Grades 4-8 must be offered the “opportunity” for weekly instruction 
by their Advising Teacher and daily interaction by school staff and grades 9-12 must be offered the 
“opportunity” for weekly instruction by the teacher of record. We will implement this by having all the TK-8 
Advising Teachers offer daily instruction for 30 minutes a day via Zoom, from 8:15-8:45 AM on all school 
days. All 9-12 Advising Teachers will offer weekly instruction for 30 minutes via Zoom, from 8:15-8:45 AM, 
GHS on Tuesdays and ECS on Wednesdays. 
  Item 6: (new) We will help the student transition back to a seat-based instruction if this better 
meets the needs of the student. 
  Item 7: addresses the Master Agreement 
  Item 8: remains the same 
  Item 9: remains the same 

 

8.   *Action: Independent Study Policy 
The Board shall consider adoption of an Independent Study Policy in accordance with the requirements 
of Education Code Section 51747. 
 

Questions/Comments: 
 Tamara – Commendation on the new plan 

Michael – We have an additional 30 days to get the Master Agreements signed by the parents. 
We are moving to electronic attendance through our SIS program (School Pathways). Teacher will 
follow-up on 3 or more absences via phone. 
Approved 

 

 Motion: Darin Soukup  Second: Tiffany Schutz  Vote: 5 yes, 0 no 
 

 

9.    Reports 
 

a). Executive Directors Report – Michael Cox 
  1) Update on school opening 
As per the new IS Policy, daily instruction will happen via Zoom by each Advising teacher for students 

TK-8 and weekly for students 9-12. The Advising Teacher has discretion to do whatever they feel most meets 
the needs of their students. Attendance will be taken but this in not mandatory to the students. 

This year attendance will be taken electronically on a weekly bases and signed by the parent every 20 
school days. 

Masks will be required in all indoor spaces as per the CDPH guidelines. Exemptions can only be obtained 
through a medical waver filled out and signed by a medical doctor. Forms are available on the school’s 
websites. 
 



 

 

10.     Next Scheduled Board Meeting Tuesday, September 14, 2021 @ 2:00 PM 
 Confirmed 
 

11.     *Adjournment @ 2:44 PM 
 

 Motion: Monika Moulin  Second: Tiffany Schutz 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 
I certify that I am the duly elected Secretary of the Western Sierra Charter Schools, a California nonprofit public benefits corporation; 

that these minutes are of the special meeting of the Board of Directors held on August 11 2021. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Joyce Vind 

Minutes prepared and submitted by: Diane Neulinger 









































Board Policy #: 21/22-001-A 

Adopted/Ratified:  

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                     PAGE 1 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS 
 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY FOR ALL WSCS SCHOOLS 
 

This policy replaces the prior Independent Study Board Policy that was originally adopted 9/4/08. 

 

 Western Sierra Charter Schools operates Mountain Home School Charter, Glacier High School 

Charter, and Endeavor Charter School (hereinafter, collectively the “Charter Schools”). The 

Charter Schools shall offer independent study to meet the educational needs of pupils enrolled in 

the Charter Schools. Independent study is an optional educational alternative in which no pupil 

may be required to participate and is designed to teach the knowledge and skills of the core 

curriculum.  The Charter Schools shall provide appropriate existing services and resources to 

enable pupils to complete their independent study successfully. The following written policies 

have been adopted by the Western Sierra Charter Schools Board of Directors for implementation 

at Charter School: 

 

1. For pupils in all grade levels and programs offered by the Charter Schools, the maximum 

length of time that may elapse between the time an assignment is made and the date by 

which the pupil must complete the assigned work shall be no more than twenty (20) school 

days.  

 

2. The Principal or designee shall conduct an evaluation to determine whether it is in the best 

interests of the pupil to remain in independent study upon the following triggers: 

 

a. When a pupil fails to complete 4 assignments during any period of twenty (20) 

school days: 

 

b. In the event Student’s educational progress falls below satisfactory levels as 

determined by the Charter School’s Response to Intervention (RTI) Process which 

considers all of the following indicators: 

 

i. The pupil’s achievement and engagement in the independent study 

program, as indicated by the pupil’s performance on applicable pupil-level 

measures of pupil achievement and pupil engagement set forth in Education 

Code Section 52060(d) paragraphs (4) and (5). 

ii. The completion of assignments, assessments, or other indicators that 

evidence that the pupil is working on assignments. 

iii. Learning required concepts, as determined by the supervising teacher. 

iv. Progressing toward successful completion of the course of study or 

individual course, as determined by the supervising teacher.  

 

A written record of the findings of any evaluation conducted pursuant to this policy shall 

be treated as a mandatory interim pupil record. The record shall be maintained for a period 



Board Policy #: 21/22-001-A 

Adopted/Ratified:  

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                                                    PAGE 2 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

of three years from the date of the evaluation and, if the pupil transfers to another California 

public school, the record shall be forwarded to that school. 

 

3. The Charter School shall provide content aligned to grade level standards that is provided 

at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially equivalent to in-person 

instruction.  For high school grade levels this shall include access to all courses offered by 

the Charter School for graduation and approved by the UC or CSU as credible under the 

A-G admissions criteria. 

 

4. The Charter School has adopted tiered reengagement strategies for all pupils who are not 

generating attendance for more than three (3) school days or 60% of the instructional days 

in a school week, or who are in violation of the written agreement pursuant to Education 

Code Section 51747(g).  These procedures are as follow: 

 

a. Verification of current contact information for each enrolled pupil; 

 

b. Notification to parents or guardians of lack of participation within one school day 

of the absence or lack of participation; 

 

c. Outreach from the Charter School to determine pupil needs including connection 

with health and social services as necessary; 

 

d. When the evaluation described above under paragraph 2.b. is triggered to consider 

whether remaining in independent study is in the best interest of the pupil, a pupil-

parent-educator conference shall be required to review a pupil’s written agreement 

and reconsider the independent study program’s impact on the pupil’s achievement 

and well-being. This conference shall be a meeting involving, at a minimum, all 

parties who signed the pupil’s written independent study agreement. 

 

5. The following plan shall be in place in accordance with Education Code Section 51747(e) 

for synchronous instruction and live interaction: 

 

a. For pupils in transitional kindergarten through grade 3, inclusive, the plan to 

provide opportunities for daily synchronous instruction for all pupils throughout 

the school year by each pupil’s teacher of record shall be as follows:  The teacher 

of record will offer the opportunity for daily synchronous, two-way instruction and 

personal interaction delivered in person, or via internet, or by telephonic 

communication. 

 

b. For pupils in grades 4-8, inclusive, the plan to provide opportunities for daily live 

interaction between the pupil and a certificated or non-certificated employee of the 

Charter School and at least weekly synchronous instruction for all pupils 

throughout the school year by each pupil’s teacher of record shall be as follows: 

The teacher of record will offer the opportunity for weekly synchronous, two-way 

instruction delivered in person, or via internet, or by telephonic communication.  



Board Policy #: 21/22-001-A 

Adopted/Ratified:  

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                                                    PAGE 3 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

Additionally, school staff will provide the opportunity for daily personal interaction 

delivered in person, or via internet, or by telephonic communication. 

 

c. For pupils in grades 9-12, inclusive, the plan to provide opportunities for at least 

weekly synchronous instruction for all pupils throughout the school year by each 

pupil’s teacher of record shall be as follows: The teacher of record will offer the 

opportunity for weekly synchronous, two-way instruction and personal interaction 

delivered in person, or via internet, or by telephonic communication. 

 

6. The following plan shall be utilized to transition pupils whose families wish to return to in-

person instruction from independent study expeditiously, and, in no case, later than five 

instructional days: WSCS Schools are independent study charter schools and do not 

provide any full-time, in-person instruction.  Pupils who wish to return to in-person 

instruction may do so at any time by enrolling in their neighborhood District school.  

School personnel will assist with this process. 

 

7. A current written agreement shall be maintained on file for each independent study pupil, 

including but not limited to, all of the following: 

 

a. The manner, time, frequency, and place for submitting a pupil’s assignments, for 

reporting the pupil’s academic progress, and for communicating with a pupil’s 

parent or guardian regarding a pupil’s academic progress. 

b. The objectives and methods of study for the pupil’s work, and the methods used to 

evaluate that work. 

c. The specific resources, including materials and personnel, that will be made 

available to the pupil. These resources shall include confirming or providing access 

to all pupils to the connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the 

educational program and complete assigned work. 

d. A statement of the policies adopted pursuant to Education Code Section 51747, 

subdivisions (a) and (b) regarding the maximum length of time allowed between 

the assignment and the completion of a pupil’s assigned work, the level of 

satisfactory educational progress, and the number of missed assignments allowed 

before an evaluation of whether or not the pupil should be allowed to continue in 

independent study. 

e. The duration of the independent study agreement, including the beginning and 

ending dates for the pupil’s participation in independent study under the agreement. 

No independent study agreement shall be valid for any period longer than one 

school year. 

f. A statement of the number of course credits or, for the elementary grades, other 

measures of academic accomplishment appropriate to the agreement, to be earned 

by the pupil upon completion. 

g. A statement detailing the academic and other supports that will be provided to 

address the needs of pupils who are not performing at grade level, or need support 

in other areas, such as English learners, individuals with exceptional needs in order 

to be consistent with the pupil’s individualized education program or plan pursuant 



Board Policy #: 21/22-001-A 

Adopted/Ratified:  

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                                                    PAGE 4 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

to Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 794), pupils 

in foster care or experiencing homelessness, and pupils requiring mental health 

supports. 

h. The inclusion of a statement in each independent study agreement that independent 

study is an optional educational alternative in which no pupil may be required to 

participate. In the case of a pupil who is referred or assigned to any school, class, 

or program pursuant to Section 48915 or 48917, the agreement also shall include 

the statement that instruction may be provided to the pupil through independent 

study only if the pupil is offered the alternative of classroom instruction. 

i. Each written agreement shall be signed, before the commencement of independent 

study, by the pupil, the pupil’s parent, legal guardian, or caregiver, if the pupil is 

less than 18 years of age, the certificated employee who has been designated as 

having responsibility for the general supervision of independent study, and all 

persons who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the pupil. For 

purposes of this paragraph “caregiver” means a person who has met the 

requirements of Part 1.5 (commencing with Section 6550) of Division 11 of the 

Family Code. 

 

8. The Charter School shall comply with the Education Code sections 51745 through 51749.3 

and the provisions of the Charter Schools Act of 1992 and the State Board of Education 

regulations adopted there under. 

 

9. The Executive Director of Schools shall establish regulations to implement these policies 

in accordance with the law. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



Board Policy #: 21/22-001 

Adopted/Ratified: 08/11/2021 

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                     PAGE 1 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS 
 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY FOR ALL WSCS SCHOOLS 
 

This policy replaces the prior Independent Study Board Policy that was originally adopted 9/4/08. 

 

 Western Sierra Charter Schools operates Mountain Home School Charter, Glacier High School 

Charter, and Endeavor Charter School (hereinafter, collectively the “Charter Schools”). The 

Charter Schools shall offer independent study to meet the educational needs of pupils enrolled in 

the Charter Schools. Independent study is an optional educational alternative in which no pupil 

may be required to participate and is designed to teach the knowledge and skills of the core 

curriculum.  The Charter Schools shall provide appropriate existing services and resources to 

enable pupils to complete their independent study successfully. The following written policies 

have been adopted by the Western Sierra Charter Schools Board of Directors for implementation 

at Charter School: 

 

1. For pupils in all grade levels and programs offered by the Charter Schools, the maximum 

length of time that may elapse between the time an assignment is made and the date by 

which the pupil must complete the assigned work shall be no more than twenty (20) school 

days.  

 

2. The Principal or designee shall conduct an evaluation to determine whether it is in the best 

interests of the pupil to remain in independent study upon the following triggers: 

 

a. When a pupil fails to complete the following number of 4 assignments during any 

period of twenty (20) school days: 

i. For TK – Eighth grade students, four (4) assignments; 

ii. For Ninth - Twelfth grade students, one (1) assignment per independent 

study subject  

 

b. In the event Student’s educational progress falls below satisfactory levels as 

determined by the Charter School’s Response to Intervention (RTI) Process which 

considers all of the following indicators: 

 

i. The pupil’s achievement and engagement in the independent study 

program, as indicated by the pupil’s performance on applicable pupil-level 

measures of pupil achievement and pupil engagement set forth in Education 

Code Section 52060(d) paragraphs (4) and (5). 

ii. The completion of assignments, assessments, or other indicators that 

evidence that the pupil is working on assignments. 

iii. Learning required concepts, as determined by the supervising teacher. 

iv. Progressing toward successful completion of the course of study or 

individual course, as determined by the supervising teacher.  

 



Board Policy #: 21/22-001 

Adopted/Ratified: 08/11/2021  

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                                                    PAGE 2 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

A written record of the findings of any evaluation conducted pursuant to this policy shall 

be treated as a mandatory interim pupil record. The record shall be maintained for a period 

of three years from the date of the evaluation and, if the pupil transfers to another California 

public school, the record shall be forwarded to that school. 

 

3. The Charter School shall provide content aligned to grade level standards that is provided 

at a level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially equivalent to in-person 

instruction.  For high school grade levels this shall include access to all courses offered by 

the Charter School for graduation and approved by the UC or CSU as credible under the 

A-G admissions criteria. 

 

4. The Charter School has adopted tiered reengagement strategies for all pupils who are not 

generating attendance for more than three (3) school days or 60% of the instructional days 

in a school week, or who are in violation of the written agreement pursuant to Education 

Code Section 51747(g).  These procedures are as follow: 

 

a. Verification of current contact information for each enrolled pupil; 

 

b. Notification to parents or guardians of lack of participation within one school day 

of the absence or lack of participation; 

 

c. Outreach from the Charter School to determine pupil needs including connection 

with health and social services as necessary; 

 

d. When the evaluation described above under paragraph 2.b. is triggered to consider 

whether remaining in independent study is in the best interest of the pupil, a pupil-

parent-educator conference shall be required to review a pupil’s written agreement 

and reconsider the independent study program’s impact on the pupil’s achievement 

and well-being. This conference shall be a meeting involving, at a minimum, all 

parties who signed the pupil’s written independent study agreement. 

 

5. The following plan shall be in place in accordance with Education Code Section 51747(e) 

for synchronous instruction and live interaction: 

 

a. For pupils in transitional kindergarten through grade 3, inclusive, the plan to 

provide opportunities for daily synchronous instruction for all pupils throughout 

the school year by each pupil’s assigned supervising teacher of record shall be as 

follows:  Each Advising Teacher The teacher of record will offer the opportunity 

for daily synchronous, two-way instruction and personal interaction delivered in 

person, or via internet, or by telephonic communication. 

 

b. For pupils in grades 4-8, inclusive, the plan to provide opportunities for daily live 

interaction between the pupil and a certificated or non-certificated employee of the 

Charter School and at least weekly synchronous instruction for all pupils 

throughout the school year by each pupil’s assigned supervising teacher of record 



Board Policy #: 21/22-001 

Adopted/Ratified: 08/11/2021  

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                                                    PAGE 3 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

shall be as follows: Each Advising Teacher The teacher of record will offer the 

opportunity for daily weekly synchronous, two-way instruction and personal 

interaction delivered in person, or via internet, or by telephonic communication.  

Additionally, school staff will provide the opportunity for daily personal interaction 

delivered in person, or via internet, or by telephonic communication 

 

c. For pupils in grades 9-12, inclusive, the plan to provide opportunities for at least 

weekly synchronous instruction for all pupils throughout the school year by each 

pupil’s assigned supervising teacher of record shall be as follows: Each Advising 

Teacher The teacher of record will offer the opportunity for weekly synchronous, 

two-way instruction and personal interaction delivered in person, or via internet, or 

by telephonic communication. 

 

6. The following plan shall be utilized to transition pupils whose families wish to return to in-

person instruction from independent study expeditiously, and, in no case, later than five 

instructional days: WSCS Schools are independent study charter schools and do not 

provide any full-time, in-person instruction.  Pupils who wish to return to in-person 

instruction may do so at any time by enrolling in their neighborhood District school.  

School personnel will assist with this process. 

 

7. A current written agreement shall be maintained on file for each independent study pupil, 

including but not limited to, all of the following: 

 

a. The manner, time, frequency, and place for submitting a pupil’s assignments, for 

reporting the pupil’s academic progress, and for communicating with a pupil’s 

parent or guardian regarding a pupil’s academic progress. 

b. The objectives and methods of study for the pupil’s work, and the methods used to 

evaluate that work. 

c. The specific resources, including materials and personnel, that will be made 

available to the pupil. These resources shall include confirming or providing access 

to all pupils to the connectivity and devices adequate to participate in the 

educational program and complete assigned work. 

d. A statement of the policies adopted pursuant to Education Code Section 51747, 

subdivisions (a) and (b) regarding the maximum length of time allowed between 

the assignment and the completion of a pupil’s assigned work, the level of 

satisfactory educational progress, and the number of missed assignments allowed 

before an evaluation of whether or not the pupil should be allowed to continue in 

independent study. 

e. The duration of the independent study agreement, including the beginning and 

ending dates for the pupil’s participation in independent study under the agreement. 

No independent study agreement shall be valid for any period longer than one 

school year. 

f. A statement of the number of course credits or, for the elementary grades, other 

measures of academic accomplishment appropriate to the agreement, to be earned 

by the pupil upon completion. 



Board Policy #: 21/22-001 

Adopted/Ratified: 08/11/2021  

Revision Date:  DRAFT REVISION 

 

 

WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS                                                    PAGE 4 OF 4 

INDEPENDENT STUDY POLICY 

g. A statement detailing the academic and other supports that will be provided to 

address the needs of pupils who are not performing at grade level, or need support 

in other areas, such as English learners, individuals with exceptional needs in order 

to be consistent with the pupil’s individualized education program or plan pursuant 

to Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 794), pupils 

in foster care or experiencing homelessness, and pupils requiring mental health 

supports. 

h. The inclusion of a statement in each independent study agreement that independent 

study is an optional educational alternative in which no pupil may be required to 

participate. In the case of a pupil who is referred or assigned to any school, class, 

or program pursuant to Section 48915 or 48917, the agreement also shall include 

the statement that instruction may be provided to the pupil through independent 

study only if the pupil is offered the alternative of classroom instruction. 

i. Each written agreement shall be signed, before the commencement of independent 

study, by the pupil, the pupil’s parent, legal guardian, or caregiver, if the pupil is 

less than 18 years of age, the certificated employee who has been designated as 

having responsibility for the general supervision of independent study, and all 

persons who have direct responsibility for providing assistance to the pupil. For 

purposes of this paragraph “caregiver” means a person who has met the 

requirements of Part 1.5 (commencing with Section 6550) of Division 11 of the 

Family Code. 

 

8. The Charter School shall comply with the Education Code sections 51745 through 51749.3 

and the provisions of the Charter Schools Act of 1992 and the State Board of Education 

regulations adopted there under. 

 

9. The Executive Director of Schools shall establish regulations to implement these policies 

in accordance with the law. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS  

ADMISSIONS AND ENROLLMENT POLICY 

1 
 

I. Introduction 

The goal of the admissions policy of Western Sierra Charter Schools (hereinafter “Schools”) is to attract, 

enroll and retain children of parents (or guardians) who are seeking to be their child’s primary educator.  

This is sometimes called homeschooling, independent study, home based education, or non-classroom 

based education. Whatever the term, the fundamental matter is the primacy of the parent’s role and 

responsibility in the education of their child. The Schools will be nonsectarian in their programs, 

admissions policies, employment practices and all other operations.  The Schools will not charge tuition 

and the Schools will not discriminate in admissions or outreach against any pupil on the basis of ethnicity, 

national origin, gender, disability or any other legally protected category. 

II. Admission and Requirements for Admission 

The Schools are open to any student in the State of California who meets the admissions requirements 

described herein.  If the number of pupils who wish to attend the School exceeds the school’s capacity, 

attendance (except for existing pupils of the charter school) shall be determined by a public random 

drawing, the process for which is described below.   

Admission Eligibility and Requirements  

In order to be eligible for enrollment in the Schools, students must meet the following eligibility 

requirements: 

 All students must have successfully completed their education through the grade level prior to the 

grade in which they are seeking to enroll. 

 All students must have been fully immunized and present the appropriate health examination 

record in accordance with the California Health and Safety Code. 

 

 All Transitional Kindergarten students must be age 5 between September 2 and December 2 of the 

current school year. 

 All Kindergarten students must be age 5 on or before September 1 of the school year in which 

he/she seeks enrollment.   

 No student may concurrently attend a private school that charges the student’s family for tuition. 

 All students and their parents or guardians must read, agree to and sign the Schools’ Master 

Independent Study Agreement.  

 All students shall be documented as residents of the county the school is authorized in or an 

adjacent county.  

 No student will be admitted if he/she has been previously expelled from another educational 

institution unless, based on the specific facts of the situation in accordance with the Schools’ 

discipline policy, the Executive Director of WSCS makes a determination to recommend for 

enrollment such student to the WSCS governing board.  Such a student’s admission to the school 

would be completely at the discretion of the governing board on a case-by-case basis.  



WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS  

ADMISSIONS AND ENROLLMENT POLICY 

2 
 

In order to ensure that all students will be placed appropriately and benefit fully from the education 

program, the following pre-admission procedures will be enforced.  Failure to comply with any of these 

procedures will result in denial of admission.  An admitted student will be removed from the School if 

failure to comply with these procedures is discovered after admission has been granted.  All eligible 

students must meet the following requirements: 

 The application for admission shall include, but is not limited to, the following:  

• Completion of a student enrollment form 

• Proof of Immunizations 

• Home Language Survey 

• Completion of Emergency Medical Information Form 

• Proof of minimum age requirements 

• Application for Free or Reduced-Price Meal  

 

 Parents/guardians/caregivers shall attend an information meeting or its equivalent.  At the 

Schools’ discretion this meeting may be by phone. 

The School shall follow any required procedures for the transfer of a program between SELPAs.   

III. Preferences 

In the event that there are more students applying for admission than available space, preferences shall be 

extended in the following order of priority:   

 Pupils currently attending the School;  

 Children of staff and governing board members; 

 Siblings of students currently enrolled in the School;  

 Pupils matriculating from one WSCS school to another; 

 Students residing within the boundaries of the authorizing district.  

IV. Enrollment Process and Guidelines 

There will be an open enrollment period each year, which will be advertised within the school community 

so that all interested students may have an equal opportunity to apply for admission.  The deadline for 

accepting applications will be clearly stated. 

The process for enrollment proceeds as follows, (not necessarily in the exact order provided): 

 The Schools will determine class size/configuration for the school year; 

 The Schools will solicit from current students and or their parents/guardians their intention to 

return the following year; 



WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS  

ADMISSIONS AND ENROLLMENT POLICY 

3 
 

 The Schools will solicit from parents/guardians of current students their intention to apply for 

admission for siblings of current students; 

 The Schools will host Information Open House Meeting(s) and record attendance; 

 The Schools will schedule school tours; 

 The Schools will establish and hold an open enrollment period so that all interested students may 

have an equal opportunity to apply for admission; 

 The Schools will determine the number of returning students at each level; 

 The Schools will determine the number of new students at each level; 

 After the students in the preferred categories are placed, the remaining students will be placed 

pursuant to a random public drawing;  

 The Schools will hold a random public drawing, if necessary (See WSCS Public Random Drawing 

Policy); 

 The Schools will notify the families of the applicants who are drawn accepted as well as those 

who were not drawn and thereby not accepted; 

 Non-accepted families will be placed on the waitlist in the order in which the students are drawn 

from the random public drawing.   

Once on the ranked, lottery wait list, a student will remain in that position until he/she is offered a spot in 

the school or expresses no further interest.  If families from the wait list are offered a position, they must 

accept that position within 48 hours or if they decline or fail to respond within 48 hours they will be 

removed from the wait list. 

Adopted: 1/20/2010 

Amended: (This amended version will receive WSCS Board action on 9/14/21) 



WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS  

ADMISSIONS AND ENROLLMENT POLICY 

1 
 

I. Introduction 

The goal of the admissions policy of Western Sierra Charter Schools (hereinafter “Schools”) is to attract, 

enroll and retain children of parents (or guardians) who are seeking to be their child’s primary educator.  

This is sometimes called homeschooling, independent study, home based education, or non-classroom 

based education. Whatever the term, the fundamental matter is the primacy of the parent’s role and 

responsibility in the education of their child. The Schools will be nonsectarian in their programs, 

admissions policies, employment practices and all other operations.  The Schools will not charge tuition 

and the Schools will not discriminate in admissions or outreach against any pupil on the basis of ethnicity, 

national origin, gender, disability or any other legally protected category. 

II. Admission and Requirements for Admission 

The Schools are open to any student in the State of California who meets the admissions requirements 

described herein.  If the number of pupils who wish to attend the School exceeds the school’s capacity, 

attendance (except for existing pupils of the charter school) shall be determined by a public random 

drawing, the process for which is described below.   

Admission Eligibility and Requirements  

In order to be eligible for enrollment in the Schools, students must meet the following eligibility 

requirements: 

 All students must have successfully completed their education through the grade level prior to the 

grade in which they are seeking to enroll. 

 All students must have been fully immunized and present the appropriate health examination 

record in accordance with the California Health and Safety Code. 

 

 All Transitional Kindergarten students must be age 5 between September 2 and December 2 of the 

current school year. 

 All Kindergarten students must be age 5 on or before September 1 of the school year in which 

he/she seeks enrollment.  If a student turns five years of age after September 1 during the school 

year, that student may be eligible for admission on a case by case basis in the discretion of the 

Director, in accordance with the Board’s age-admission policy and in accordance with law.   

 All students must be at least age 6 (by September 1 of the school year in which he/she seeks 

enrollment in first grade, with some exceptions in accordance with the Board’s age-admission 

policy and in accordance with law), and not exceeding age 19, unless the student was continuously 

enrolled in public school prior to age 19, the student is being served under the term of an 

Individualized Education Program, and/or the school or program qualifies for an exemption from 

the general prohibition on serving students over age 19 and in accordance with the California 

Education Code.  

 No student may concurrently attend a private school that charges the student’s family for tuition. 



WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS  

ADMISSIONS AND ENROLLMENT POLICY 

2 
 

 All students and their parents or guardians must read, agree to and sign the Schools’ Master 

Independent Study Agreement.  

 All students shall be documented as residents of the county the school is authorized in or an 

adjacent county.  

 No student will be admitted if he/she has been previously expelled from another educational 

institution unless, based on the specific facts of the situation in accordance with the Schools’ 

discipline policy, the Executive Director of WSCS makes a determination to recommend for 

enrollment such student to the WSCS governing board.  Such a student’s admission to the school 

would be completely at the discretion of the governing board on a case-by-case basis.  

In order to ensure that all students will be placed appropriately and benefit fully from the education 

program, the following pre-admission procedures will be enforced.  Failure to comply with any of these 

procedures will result in denial of admission.  An admitted student will be removed from the School if 

failure to comply with these procedures is discovered after admission has been granted.  All eligible 

students must meet the following requirements: 

 Complete applications for admission must be timely submitted to the School no later than the 

deadline published for that school year. 

 The application for admission shall include, but is not limited to, the following:  

o Authorization for the School to request and receive student records from all schools the 

student has previously attended or is currently attending; 

o Proof of full immunization or exception from the requirement; 

o Proof of health examinations required by the Health and Safety Code; 

o Proof of age with the application for admission; 

o Proof of residency; 

o Indicating whether the student may require special education or related services, the 

student’s home language and whether the student may be an English language learner.   

 

• Completion of a student enrollment form 

• Proof of Immunizations 

• Home Language Survey 

• Completion of Emergency Medical Information Form 

• Proof of minimum age requirements 

• Application for Free or Reduced-Price Meal  

 

 Parents/guardians/caregivers shall attend an pre-admission information meeting or its equivalent.  

At the Schools’ discretion this meeting may be by phone. 

 Parents/guardians/caregivers shall attend a school tour  

The School shall follow any required procedures for the transfer of a program between SELPAs.  

Additionally, each application will be reviewed by staff to ensure it is complete before the student will be 

considered for admission.   



WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS  

ADMISSIONS AND ENROLLMENT POLICY 

3 
 

III. Preferences 

In the event that there are more students applying for admission than available space, preferences shall be 

extended in the following order of priority:   

 Pupils currently attending the School;  

 Children of staff and governing board members (not to exceed 10% of the total student 

population);   

 Siblings of students currently enrolled in the School;  

 Pupils matriculating from one WSCS school to another; 

 Students residing within the boundaries of the authorizing district.  

IV. Enrollment Process and Guidelines 

There will be an open enrollment period each year, which will be advertised within the school community 

so that all interested students may have an equal opportunity to apply for admission.  The deadline for 

accepting applications will be clearly stated. 

The process for enrollment proceeds as follows, (not necessarily in the exact order provided): 

 The Schools will determine class size/configuration for the school year; 

 The Schools will solicit from current students and or their parents/guardians their intention to 

return the following year; 

 The Schools will solicit from parents/guardians of current students their intention to apply for 

admission for siblings of current students; 

 The Schools will host Information Open House Meeting(s) and record attendance; 

 The Schools will schedule school tours; 

 The Schools will establish and hold an open enrollment period so that all interested students may 

have an equal opportunity to apply for admission; 

 The Schools will determine the number of returning students at each level; 

 The Schools will determine the number of new students at each level; 

 Priority placement will be given to eligible students who completed their application for admission 

on time as identified in the previous section;   

 After the students in the preferred categories are placed, the remaining students will be placed 

pursuant to a random public drawing;  

 The Schools will hold a random public drawing, if necessary (See WSCS Public Random Drawing 

Policy); 

 The Schools will notify the families of the applicants who are drawn accepted as well as those 

who were not drawn and thereby not accepted; 



WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS  

ADMISSIONS AND ENROLLMENT POLICY 

4 
 

 Non-accepted families will be placed on the waitlist in the order in which the students are drawn 

from the random public drawing.   

A wait list is maintained from year to year.  Once on the ranked, lottery wait list, a student would will 

remain in that position until he/she is offered a spot in the school or expresses no further interest.  If 

families from the wait list are offered a position, they must accept that position within three business days 

48 hours or if they decline or fail to respond within three business days 48 hours they may will be 

removed from the wait list. or placed at the bottom of the wait list if they desire.   

Adopted: 1/20/2010 

Amended: 



Western Sierra Charter Schools 

Allocation Policy 

As there are a variety of essential facilities, goods and services that are purchased and shared between 
Mountain Home School, Glacier High School, and Endeavor Charter School it is necessary for WSCS to 
establish an equitable cost allocation model to fairly share these expenses. 
This allocation policy takes into consideration school enrollments, building demand and staff demand. 
Being that these factors change over time, the WSCS Board will review this policy annually. 
 
Cost allocations are as follows: 

1) Costs for Oakhurst location only - 71% Mountain Home and 29% Glacier for: 
o Utilities 
o Office Supplies 
o Instructional Supplies/Curriculum 
o Facility costs 
o Other shared expenses 

2) Costs for Fresno location only - 100% to Endeavor Charter School for: 
o Utilities 
o Office Supplies 
o Instructional Supplies/Curriculum 
o Facility costs 
o Other shared expenses 

For the costs noted in Item 1 and 2 above, if they are shared among all schools, the allocation 
will be 37% to Mountain Home, 15% to Glacier and 48% to Endeavor 
(Or as determined at time of purchase due to unique circumstances.) 

3) Audit services will be paid as billed. 
4) Legal services for Western Sierra Charter Schools Inc. will be allocated 37% to Mountain Home, 

15% to Glacier, and 48% to Endeavor.  Legal services provided specifically for a particular school 
only will be paid for by that school at 100%. 

5) Classified and administrative staff will be paid by Mountain Home, Glacier, and Endeavor 
proportionally to the fractional time worked. 

6) Certificated staff will be paid by each school proportionally according to the students they serve. 
7) The non-payroll special education costs that are not specifically allocable to a particular student 

will be allocated 37% to Mountain Home School, 15% to Glacier High School, and 48% to 
Endeavor Charter School. Costs that are directly related to a specific student will be allocated 
directly to that school as appropriate. Staff related SPED costs will be paid according to the 
staffing costs methodology noted in item 5 and 6 above. 

 
 
Approved:          1/12/2011 
Amended:           Last revised by the Board on 9/10/20, submitted for amendment on 9/14/21. 



Quote

Location: Clovis | #190 | 559-387-5355 Scheduled Date:

Factory Location: Fresno | #190 | 559-268-8833 Created Date: 09/07/2021

Prepared by: Scott Sheesley | 5593248317 | 
ssheesley@tuffshed.com Customer

Mountain Home School Att: Michael Cox 
p. 559-641-8495 |c. 559-641-8495
mcox@wscsfamily.org

JDE SO

SF Quote Q-1307068Special Instructions:

Ship to Address 41267 California 41
Oakhurst, CA 93644

Line Item Description Sales 
Price

Quantity Promo Addt’l 
Disc

Total 
Price

Premier Pro Tall Ranch 16 x 20 $11,790.00 1.00 ($300.00) $0.00 $11,490.00

Vertical Groove Cement Panel Siding $6.50 607.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $3,945.50

Custom Services:  Permit pulling-permit fees-2 WUI vents $2,425.00 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $2,425.00

Paint 10% of building base price $1,179.00 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $1,179.00

2x4 Skylight $329.00 2.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $658.00

Upgrade - 3068 L-In 6 Panel Residential Door $575.00 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $575.00

Custom Engineering:  Engineered Plans $475.00 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $475.00

House Wrap $0.40 607.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $242.80

Generator Rental $100.00 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $100.00

12"x12"Gable End Vent, White $37.00 2.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $74.00

Floor Track Vent $2.00 20.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $40.00

Paint - Delicate White $0.00 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $0.00

Shakewood Lifetime $0.00 387.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $0.00

Leveling 0"-4" $0.00 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $0.00

Paint - Cherokee Red $0.00 607.00 ($0.00) $0.00 $0.00

Credit for Removal of Default Door ($275.00) 1.00 ($0.00) $0.00 ($275.00)

Delivery Fee $131.00 1.00 () $0.00 $131.00

Gross Total $21,360.30
Discount ($300.00)
Net Total $21,060.30
Estimated Tax $0.00
Grand Total $21,060.30



The price quoted is valid through the expiration date of the promotion, but in no case shall be valid longer than seven days. Once 
an order has been placed, pricing is guaranteed for up to 6 months. If the installation is not completed within 6 months for any 
reason, Tuff Shed has the right to modify the order pricing. You will be notified regarding any price adjustment prior to 
installation or incurring any additional charges. 



Western Sierra Charter Schools 
Governing Board Resolution  

Resolution # 2021-2022-06 
 

Resolution Regarding: Board Designated Reserve Funds Adjustment 
 
 WHEREAS, the Western Sierra Charter Schools Board of Directors desires to maintain a sound fiscal 
status for the organization now and in the future and 
 
 WHEREAS, diligently planning for future costs and setting aside funds for such costs is a prudent 
method for maintaining the organization’s fiscal strength, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, 
 
 That the Board has resolved to adjust the following assigned discretionary reserve amounts and that this 
is being done in order to retain reasonable discretionary reserves that are to be considered as set aside for the 
following purposes: 
 

• Temporary Loan/Interfund Transfer Reserve 
The total reserve allocation for this category is currently $450,000 for Mountain Home School and 
$150,000 for Glacier High School. These loans have already ocurred and no additional loans are 
contemplated at this time, so these reserves should be reduced to zero. 

 
• Special Education Reserve 

No adjustment to this reserve is being considered at this time. The current reserve amount remains 
$150,000 for Mountain Home School and $50,000 for Glacier High School, keeping the combined 
reserve the same as was previously maintained, $200,000. 

 
• Total Balance of Reserves 

These changes will reduce our combined Board Designated Discretionary Reserves to $200,000. 
($150,000 for Mountain Home School, $50,000 for Glacier High School and $0 for Endeavor Charter 
School.) 

 
These designations are at the Board’s discretion and are not in response to any particular legal requirement or 
regulation, and as such, may be amended, canceled, or superseded as conditions warrant and the Board 
determines, at any time. 
 
 PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Western Sierra Charter Schools at a meeting held 
on September 14, 2021 by the following vote: 

Ayes:    

Noes: 

Signed:________________________________ Date ______________ 



Fund Balance Transfer Calculation as of 7/1/20 based upon 6/30/20 Audited Financial Statements
Mountain Home Glacier Endeavor

As of 6/30/20 Audited Fund Balance Audited Fund Balance N/A Comment
Cash 483,660.00                  218,212.00                  
AR 423,393.00                  215,875.00                  
Due to/Due From (47,067.00)                   47,067.00                    
Prepaid 3,314.00                      1,657.00                      
Accounts Payable (45,957.00)                   (112,367.00)                 

Accrued Expense (151,696.00)                 (65,456.00)                   
Current Portion of Accrued Post Ret (744.00)                        -                               
Accrued Post Ret LT Liab (120,489.00)                 -                               

Property and Equipment 1,171,499.00               254,724.00                  

Total Net Assets 1,715,913.00               559,712.00                  
Less Prop/Equipt (1,171,499.00)              (254,724.00)                 *No Transfer of Fixed Assets at this point
Add back Current Portion of Accrued Post Retirement 744.00                         **Will be allocated and adjusted with actuarial report
Add back Current Portion of Accrued Post Retirement 120,489.00                  **Will be allocated and adjusted with actuarial report

Fund Balance without Property and Equipment 665,647.00                  304,988.00                  

Restricted Balance (to deduct)
SPED (75,442.00)                   (29,492.00)                   ***Any possible SPED reallocation will be addressed after legal analysis and funding review
CSEPDBG (829.00)                        (291.00)                        

Net Unrestricted Fund Balance 589,376.00                  275,205.00                  

Combined Unrestricted Fund Balance 864,581.00                  

Combined Unrestricted Fund Balance 864,581.00                  864,581.00                  864,581.00             
 Proportional Allocation % of Fund Balance 38.70% 15.50% 45.80% ****Per CDE funding allocation method CDE utilized to fund Endeavor in 20-21 based on 19-20 ADA

 Proportional Allocated Amount of Fund Balance 334,592.85                  134,010.06                  395,978.10             

Original Net Unrestricted Fund Balance 589,376.00                  275,205.00                  
  Less Porportional Allocated Amount of Fund Balance (334,592.85)                 (134,010.06)                 -                         

Amount to Transfer to ECS 254,783.15                  141,194.95                  

Opening Unrestricted Fund Balance as of 7/1/20 334,592.85                  134,010.06                  395,978.10             

Combined Adjusted Unrestricted Fund Balance 864,581.00                  

Interschool Loan Balance Transfer Calculation

Original Loans Oustanding as of 6/30/21 Mountain Home Glacier Endeavor
Loans Receivable 450,000.00                  150,000.00                  
Loans Payable 600,000.00             

Transfer of Fund Balance Against Loans (254,783.15)                 (141,194.95)                 (395,978.10)           

Remaining Loans Outstanding as of 6/30/21
Loans Receivable 195,216.85                  8,805.05                      
Loans Payable 204,021.90             

Journal Entries Journal Entries
DR CR

MHS
Equity/Fund Balance 254,783.15                  
A/R Loan to ECS 254,783.15             

DR CR
GHS
Equity/Fund Balance 141,194.95                  
A/R Loan to ECS 141,194.95             

DR CR
ECS
Liab Loan from MHS 254,783.15                  
Liab Loan from GHS 141,194.95                  
Equity/Fund Balance 254,783.15             
Equity/Fund Balance 141,194.95             

Notes: An Adjustment to this Fund Balance Transfer will occur prior to the issuance of the Audited Financial Statements. The adjustments will likely include the following items.
* Fixed Assets will be adjusted

Likely fixed assets to be adjusted
-Fresno office cabling
-Fresno copier
-Vending machine

** OPEB will be reallocated and adkusted based on actuarial report

*** SPED - Any possible SPED reallocation will be addressed after legal analysis and funding review

**** Allocation Percenatge-Per CDE funding allocation method CDE utilized to fund Endeavor in 20-21 based on 19-20 ADA

Effect of this Transaction on 2020-21 Year End Unaudited Actuals Fund Balance and Inter-school Loans (Draft)

Mountain Home School 
Ending Fund Balance as of 6/30/21 1,143,703.74               
Fund Balance Transfer to Endeavor (254,783.15)                 
Adjusted Ending Fund Balance as of 6/30/21 888,920.59                  

2021-22 Expenditures Increased Expense 21-22 over 20-21
2020-21 Expenditures 1,617,655.28               2,046,710.00               Adjusted 429,054.72                                                                                                                                            
Reserve % (Fund Balance Divided by Expenditures) 55.0% 43.4%

Glacier High School 
Ending Fund Balance as of 6/30/21 433,750.83                  
Fund Balance Transfer to Endeavor (141,194.95)                 
Adjusted Ending Fund Balance as of 6/30/21 292,555.89                  

2021-22 Expenditures
2020-21 Expenditures 822,576.32                  1,048,574.00               Adjusted 225,997.68                                                                                                                                            
Reserve % (Fund Balance Divided by Expenditures) 35.6% 27.9%

Endeavor Charter School
Ending Fund Balance as of 6/30/21 (53,005.98)                   
Fund Balance Transfer from MHS and GHS 395,978.10                  
Adjusted Ending Fund Balance as of 6/30/21 342,972.12                  

2021-22 Expenditures
2020-21 Expenditures 2,548,584.01               3,083,756.00               Adjusted 535,171.99                                                                                                                                            
Reserve % (Fund Balance Divided by Expenditures) 13.5% 11.1%

1,190,224.39                                                                                                                                         



Western Sierra Charter Schools 
Governing Board Resolution  

 
 
Resolution to Transfer Funds of Mountain Home Charter School and Glacier High School 

Charter to Endeavor Charter School 

Resolution #2021-2022-04 

WHEREAS, Western Sierra Charter Schools is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation; 
and 

WHEREAS, Western Sierra Charter Schools was incorporated on June 4, 2008 operating 
Mountain Home Charter School and then Glacier High School Charter both of which had a 
resource center in the Fresno Unified School District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the school delivers a personalized learning model of education which largely depends 
upon local facilities to deliver academic intervention, tutoring, counseling, small group classes, 
labs, trainings, workshops, assemblies and many additional resources; and 
 
WHEREAS, on October 3, 2019, AB 1507 was signed into law and AB 1507 specified that an 
existing resource center that is required to convert into a charter school in order to comply with its 
provisions would be regarded as a “continuing charter school”; and 
 
WHEREAS, Endeavor Charter School was established by Western Sierra Charter Schools in order 
to comply with AB 1507, and the charter school was approved by the Fresno Unified School 
District on February 12, 2020 and it began operations in the Fresno Unified School District on July 
1, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, establishing a charter school is a significant expense with significant funding 
requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 10, 2020 the California Department of Education determined that 
Endeavor Charter School was not eligible for the PENSEC funding process for new charter schools 
due to its status as a “continuing charter school”; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 10, 2020 the California Department of Education also determined that in 
the 2020-21 school year Endeavor Charter School is entitled to its share of the funding for 
Mountain Home Charter School and Glacier High School Charter with that share being determined 
by Endeavor Charter School’s share of Average Daily Attendance (ADA) as calculated based upon 
2019-20 school year figures; and 

 
WHEREAS, the share of the Average Daily Attendance (ADA) that Endeavor Charter School was 
entitled to is 45.80% of the 2019-20 school year’s combined ADA for Mountain Home Charter 
School and Glacier High School Charter; and   
 
WHEREAS, Mountain Home Charter School and Glacier High School Charter’s share of the 2019-
20 ADA was calculated as 38.70% and 15.50% respectively; and 



Western Sierra Charter Schools 
Governing Board Resolution  

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Western Sierra Charter Schools has determined that it is 
appropriate to allocate an amount of the combined fund balance of Mountain Home Charter School 
and Glacier High School Charter’s share of the 2019-20 ADA to Endeavor Charter School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Western Sierra Charter Schools has determined that the most 
appropriate and reasonable methodology to allocate this amount is based upon the proportionate 
share of ADA that existed as of the 2019-20 school year. (The same methodology that was utilized 
by CDE to fund the three schools in the 2020-21 school year); and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of $254,783.15 represents Mountain Home Charter School’s portion and 
the amount of $141,194.95 represents Glacier High School Charter’s portion to be transferred based 
on this the approved methodology; and 
 
WHEREAS, this amount represents a reasonable and appropriate representation of the balance that 
should be allocated to Endeavor Charter School; and  
 
WHEREAS, Mountain Home Charter School and Glacier High School Charter both have a 
positive financial position, have excess reserves sufficient to transfer funds to meet the needs of 
Endeavor Charter School, and, after such transfer of funds, both Mountain Home Charter School 
and Glacier High School Charter shall continue to have and maintain adequate assets to cover 
current liabilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Western Sierra Charter Schools Board of Directors has determined that the 
proposed transfer of funds will not adversely affect the public-school purposes of Western Sierra 
Charter Schools in the continued operation of both Mountain Home Charter School and Glacier 
High School Charter; and 

WHEREAS, Western Sierra Charter Schools has consulted its independent auditor, legal counsel, 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools, Yosemite Unified School District, and Fresno Unified 
School District about this transfer and they have supported the authority of the Western Sierra 
Charter Schools Board of Directors to effectuate this transfer; and 

WHEREAS, Western Sierra Charter Schools management and Board of Directors are aware that 
due to ongoing analysis some adjusting entries affecting these transfers may occur prior to the 
issuance of the audited financial statements. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Western Sierra Charter Schools’ unrestricted 
general fund money in reserve shall be transferred as provided in this resolution. 

FURTHER, RESOLVED, that the administration of Western Sierra Charter Schools is directed to 
fully document the transfer of funds, including all financial entries, that are necessary to provide 
sufficient evidence of transfer consistent with FCMAT guidance and this Board resolution. 



Western Sierra Charter Schools 
Governing Board Resolution  

 
 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Western Sierra 
Charter Schools on Tuesday September 14, 2021, by the following vote: 

AYES:                     ____________________________ 

NOES:                    ____________________________ 

ABSENT:               ____________________________ 

ABSTENTIONS: ____________________________ 

 

I certify that I am the duly elected Secretary of Western Sierra Charter Schools, a California 
nonprofit public benefit corporation; that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the Board of Directors on ___________; and that this resolution has not been 
revoked. 

______________________________ 
      Secretary  



DRAFT 

Western Sierra Charter Schools 

Policies Related to the Expenditure of Federal Grants Funds  

Procurement- Goods and Services 

The Executive Director or designee shall comply with the standards specified in 2 CFR 200.317-200.326 
and Appendix Il of part 200 when procuring goods and services needed to carry out a federal grant as well 
as any legally required more restrictive state laws and school policies concerning the procurement of 
goods and services. 

Western Sierra Charter Schools procures only those items and services that are required to perform the 
mission and/or fill a bona fide need. Procurements are made using best value contracting which includes 
assessing the best value quality, performance, and price. 

The procurement of goods and services with federal funds shall be conducted in an impartial manner, 
which provides full, openness, based on the merits of supplier/contractor proposals and applicable 
considerations in accordance with state laws and regulations. 

Controls are in place to ensure that goods and services acquired with federal funds are of fair and 
reasonable prices, necessary and allowable, analyze lease vs. purchase alternatives, and to ensure 
purchases do not exceed the following procurement limits: 

Low-Cost items (Micro-purchases). The School will use sound business practices for purchases of goods 
and services whose total contract value does not exceed $10,000 ($2,000- in the case of acquisitions for 
construction) Western Sierra Charter Schools staff will request verbal quotes for items in this range, and 
staff will execute a purchase order for all purchases up to this amount, which shall be approved by the 
Executive Director. 

Moderate-Cost Items. The School will select the best value by obtaining written quotes from at least 
three (3) different vendors for goods or services whose total contract value is between $10,000 and 
$250,000. Should three (3) vendors not be available to provide written quotes, written evidence of this 
must be provided to the authorized signatories. Western Sierra Charter Schools will execute a purchase 
order for all purchases in this range, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors. 

High-Cost item. (Competitive proposal) A formal bid process will be used for goods or services whose total 
contract value exceeds $250,000, in which bids will be solicited in writing using defined criteria and 
deadlines from at least three (3) different vendors. Once received, vendor bids will be evaluated using a 
formal competitive proposal method/evaluation process of ranking vendors according to the solicitation 
criteria. Should three (3) vendors not be available to provide to provide written quotes, written evidence 
of this must be provided to the Board of Directors. Western Sierra Charter Schools will execute a Purchase 
Order for all purchases in this range, which shall be approved by the board of Directors. 

For any purchase of $20,000 or more, The Executive Director or designee shall verify that any vendor 
which is used to procure goods and services is not excluded or disqualified by the federal government. 
(2 CFR 180.220, 200.213) 

 

 



Contracts 

Leases. All lease agreements will be evidenced by a lease or sublease agreement approved by the Board 
of Directors and signed by the Executive Director. 

Construction Contracts. The School follows all required state and federal guidelines. 

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole sourcing) may be used only when the item is available 
from a single source, the need or emergency will not permit a delay resulting from competitive 
solicitation, the awarding agency expressly authorizes sole sourcing in response to the charter's request, 
and/or competition is determined inadequate after solicitation of a number of sources. (2 CFR 200.320) 

Time and Materials type contracts may be used only after a determination that no other contract is 
suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time and 
materials type contract means a contract whose cost is the sum of the actual cost of materials and direct 
labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general administrative expenses, and profit. 
(200.328) 

The Executive Director or designee shall maintain sufficient records to document the procurement, 
including, but not limited to, the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of the contract type, 
contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price. (2 CFR 200.318) 

The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that all contracts for purchases using federal grants funds 
contain the applicable contract provisions described in Appendix Il to Part 200 — Contract provisions for 
Non- Federal Entity Contracts under Federal Awards. (2 CFR 200.326) 

Capital Expenditures 

The Executive Director or designee shall obtain prior written approval from the awarding agency before 
using federal funds to make capital expenditures, including the acquisition of land, facilities, equipment, 
and intellectual property and expenditures to make additions, improvements, modifications, 
replacements, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations, or alterations to capital assets that materially 
increase their value or useful life. (2 CFR 200.12, 200.13, 200.20, 200.33, 200.48, 200.58, 200.89, 200.313, 
200.439) 

Conflict of Interest 

No Governing Board member, no Western Sierra Charter Schools employee, or representative shall 
participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he/she 
has a real or apparent conflict of interest, such as when he/she or a member of his/her immediate family, 
his/her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of them has a financial 
interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. Such persons are prohibited 
from soliciting or accepting gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or 
subcontractors unless the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. (2 CFR 200.318) 

Employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts shall also comply with the 
conflict of interest policy. 



Cash Management 

The Executive Director or designee shall ensure Western Sierra Charter Schools compliance with 2 CFR 
200.305 pertaining to payments and cash management, including compliance with applicable methods 
and procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the receipt of funds and Western Sierra Charter 
Schools disbursement of funds to pay vendors. 

When authorized by law, the Western Sierra Charter Schools may receive advance payments of federal 
grant funds, limited to the minimum amount needed and time in accordance with the actual immediate 
cash requirements of Western Sierra Charter Schools for carrying out the purpose of the program or 
project. 

The Executive Director or designee shall maintain source documentation supporting the expenditure of 
federal funds, such as invoices, time sheets, payroll records, or other appropriate documentation. 

Personnel 

All Western Sierra Charter Schools employees who are paid in full or in part with federal funds, including 
employees whose salary is paid with state or local funds but is used to meet a required match or in-kind 
contribution to a federal program, shall document the amount of time they spend on grant activities. (2 
CFR 200.430) 

Records 

Except as otherwise provided in 2 CFR 200.333, or where state law or Western Sierra Charter Schools 
policy requires a longer retention period, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and 
all other district records related to a federal award shall be retained for a period of 3 years from the date 
of submission of the final expenditure report or, for a federal award that is renewed quarterly or annually, 
from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report. (2 CFR 200.333) 

Audits 

Specific records pertaining to the audit of federal funds expended by Western Sierra Charter Schools shall 
be transmitted to the clearinghouse designated by the federal Office of Management and Budget and 
shall be made available for public inspection. Such records shall be transmitted within 30 days after receipt 
of the auditor's report or within nine months after the end of the audit period, whichever is sooner, unless 
a longer period is agreed to in advance by the federal agency or a different period is specified in a program 
specific audit guide. (2 CFR 200.512) 

In the event of the audit identifies any deficiency, the Executive Director shall promptly act to either 
correct the identified deficiency, produce recommended improvements, or demonstrate that the audit 
finding is invalid or does not warrant action. (2 CFR 200.26, 200.508, 200.511) 

Allowable Costs 

Prior to Obligating or spending any federal grant funds, the Executive Director or designee shall determine 
whether a proposed purchase is an allowable expenditure of federal funds in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.400-200.475 and the terms and conditions of the federal grant award. The Executive Director should 
also determine whether the expense is a direct or indirect cost as defined in 2 CFR 200.400-200.413 and 
200.414 and, if the purchase will benefit other programs not included in the grant award, the appropriate 
share to be allocated to the federal grant. 



The Executive Director or designee shall review and approve all transactions involving federal grant 
funds and shall ensure the proper coding of expenditures consistent with the California School 
Accounting Manual. 

Period of Performance 

All obligations of federal funds shall occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of the grant 
project and shall be paid no later than 90 days after the end of the funding period. Unless specifically 
authorized by the grant award to be carried over beyond the initial term of the grant. (2 CFR 200.77, 
200.308, 200.309, 200.343) 



Category Actual Comments
Adopted Budget Working Actual Revision Notes
Budget Adjustments Budget Rev/Exp

Revenue (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date LCFF Calculator ADA of 229.13
State Aid Block Grant (LCFF) 8011 935,826                    935,826             51,166                   
Education Protection Account "EPA" (LCFF) 8012 154,207                    154,207             -                         
In Lieu Prop Tax (LCFF) 8096 1,035,475                1,035,475          61,723                   
Lottery 8560 39,203 39,203 -                         
Interest 8660 1,000 1,000 -                         
Mandate Block Grant 8550 3,962 3,962 -                         
One-time Funding 8550 0 0 -                         
State STRS Contribution on Behalf - Paper Trans 7690-8590 87,178 87,178 -                         
Enhanced Learning Opportunity Grant 7425/6-8590 60,337 60,337 -                         Change to source of funding to Federal Funding From ELO
Other Local Revenue 8699 2,000 2,000 10                           
SPED Revenue (6500) 8792 112,516 112,516 13,442                   

Total Revenue 2,431,704 0 2,431,704          126,341 Total Revenue

Category Budget Actual Comments

Expense (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date

Salaries (Certificated and Classified) 989,776 989,776 112,795
Benefits (All Combined) 469,018 469,018 45,701
Total Salary & Benefits 1,458,794 0 1,458,794 158,496

Object
Instructional  (Func.1000) Code

Textbooks and Core Curricula 4100 23,662 23,662 3,398                     
Books and Ref Mat 4200 12,340 12,340
Instructional Supplies (>$500) 4300 65,852 65,852 15,229                   
Instructional Equipment ($500-$4900) 4400 108,657 108,657 8,426                     
Travel & Conference 5200 2,500 2,500 100                        
Contracted Services 5800 89,272 89,272 26,426                   
Communications 5900 6,391 6,391 1,090                     
Equipment 6400 -                                0 -                              

Building (Func. 8100)
Supplies 4300 20,000 20,000 656                        
Equipment 4400 1,046 1,046 3,064                     
Utilities 5500 8,805 8,805 14                           
Rentals, Leases & Repairs 5600 0 0 -                              
Custodial/Site Expense 5800 4,000 4,000 5,925                     
Equipment 6400 0 0 -                              

Facilities Construct(Func. 8500) 0
Site Improvement 6100 0 0 -                              
Building Improvements 6200 0 31,950                    31,950 -                              Oakhurst Interior façade and storage shed construction 

Administrative (Func. 2700)
Admin. Supplies 4300 10,000 10,000 -                              
Admin. Equipment 4400 510 510 -                              
Travel & Conference 5200 10,260 10,260 1,587                     
Service Memberships/ Fees 5300 11,381 11,381 1,775                     
Insurance 7200 5400 8,918 8,918 -                              
Contracted Services 5800 2,951 2,951 1,503                     
Contracted Services-Business Svc Fees 5800 51,221 51,221 -                              
Communications 5900 4,673 4,673 553                        
Equipment 6400 -                                0

Health Services (Func. 3120 &3140)
Contracted Services 5800 17,963 17,963 -                              

Food (Funct. 3700)
Food Costs 4700 2,280 2,280 114                        

Administrative (Func.7191)
Contracted Services -auditors 5800 28,880 28,880 -                              
General Administration (Func.7200/7300)
YUSD Oversight 1% 5800 20,907 20,907 -                              
Business Services (3.5% of Rev) 5800 21,952 21,952 -                              

Fiscal Services (Func. 9200)
Special Education 21,545 21,545 -                              

Total Expense 2,014,760                31,950                   2,046,710          228,356                 Total Expense

Revenue Less Expenses 416,944                   384,994             (102,015)               

Carryover from Prior Year 1,143,704                (254,783)                888,921             Fund balance transfer to ECS

Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses 56.8% 43.4%
Ending Balance/Future Carryover 1,560,648                1,273,915          
Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses 77.5% 62.2%

Net Income 416,944                    384,994             
Net Income as a percentage of Total Revenue 17.1% 15.8%
Extraordinary Items
One-time Expenditures 60,337                      31,950                    92,287               
One-time Funding Income (60,337)                    -                          (60,337)              

Total -                            31,950                    31,950               

Net Income Adjusted for Extraordinary Items 416,944                   416,944             
Adjusted Net Income as a percentage of Total Revenue 17.1% 17.1%

Budget
Mountain Home School 2021-22 Financial Report As of 8/31/21



Category Actual Comments
Adopted Budget Working Actual Revision Notes
Budget Adjustments Budget Rev/Exp

Revenue (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date LCFF Calculator ADA of 92.63
State Aid Block Grant (LCFF) 8011 414,129              414,129              31,656                 
Education Protection Account "EPA" (LCFF) 8012 159,126              159,126              -                       
In Lieu Prop Tax (LCFF) 8096 413,791              413,791              24,665                 
Lottery 8560 15,689 15,689                -                       
Interest 8660 1,000 1,500                  -                       
Mandate Block Grant 8550 4,342 4,342                  -                       
One-time Funding 8550 0 -                      -                       
State STRS Contribution on Behalf - Paper Transaction 8590 43,886 62,763                -                       
Emhanced Learning Opportunities Grant 7245/7426 27,779 27,779                -                       Change to source of funding to Federal Funding From ELO
Other Local Revenue 8699 0 -                      -                       
SPED Revenue (6500) 8792 37,884 37,884                4,526                   

Total Revenue 1,117,626 -                            1,137,003           60,847 Total Revenue

Category Budget Actual Comments

Expenses (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date

Salaries (Certificated and Classified) 551,896              551,896              50,342
Benefits (All Combined) 242,583              242,583              18,799

Total Salary & Benefits 794,479 0 794,479 69,141
Object

Instructional  (Func.1000) Code
Textbooks and Core Curricula 4100 11,976                11,976                953                      
Books and Ref Mat 4200 2,976                  2,976                  
Instructional Supplies (>$500) 4300 27,034                27,034                2,574                   
Instructional Equipment ($500-$4900) 4400 50,002                50,002                2,980                   
Travel & Conference 5200 3,000                  3,000                  -                            
Contracted Services 5800 25,246                25,246                19,241                 
Communications 5900 1,608                  1,608                  455                      
Equipment 6400 -                      -                      -                            

Building (Func. 8100)
Supplies 4300 10,070                10,070                266                      
Equipment 4400 950                      950                      1,242                   
Utilities 5500 3,492                  3,492                  6                           
Rentals, Leases & Repairs 5600 -                      -                      -                            
Custodial/Site Expense 5800 4,422                  4,422                  2,410                   
Equipment 6400 -                      -                      -                            

Facilities Construct (Func. 8500)
Site Improvement 6100 -                      -                      -                            
Building Improvements 6200/6250 -                      13,050                      13,050                Oakhurst Interior façade and storage shed construction 
Administrative (Func. 2700)
Admin. Supplies 4300 6,000                  6,000                  -                            
Admin. Equipment 4400 2,500                  2,500                  -                            
Travel & Conference 5200 4,050                  4,050                  676                      
Service Memberships/ Fees 5300 4,583                  4,583                  2,125                   
Insurance 5400 3,486                  3,486                  -                            
Contracted Services 5800 4,980                  4,980                  610                      
Contracted Services-Business Svcs 5800 23,843                23,843                -                            
Communications 5900 1,832                  1,832                  337                      
Equipment 6400 -                      -                      

Health Services (Func. 3120/3140)
Contracted Services 5800 10,430                10,430                -                            

Food (Funct. 3700)
Food Costs 4700 900                      900                      45                         

Administrative (Func.7191)
Contracted Services -auditors 5800 11,400                11,400                -                            

General Administration (Func.7200/7300)
YUSD Oversight 1% 5800 9,732                  9,732                  -                            
Business Services (3.5% of Rev) 5800 10,218                10,218                -                            

Fiscal Services (Func. 9200)
SPED-Costs 6,315                  6,315                  -                            

Total Expense 1,035,524           13,050                      1,048,574           103,060               Total Expense

Revenue Less Expenses 82,102                88,429                (42,213)                

Carryover from Prior Year 433,751              (141,195)                   292,556              Fund Balance transfer to ECS

Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses 41.9% 27.9%
Ending Balance/Future Carryover 515,853              380,985              
Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses 49.8% 36.3%

Net Income 82,102                88,429                
Net Income as a percentage of Total Revenue 7.3% 7.8%
Extraordinary Items
One-time Expenditures 27,779                13,050                      40,829                
One-time Funding Income (27,779)               (27,779)               

Total -                      13,050                      13,050                

Net Rev. Adjusted for Extraordinary Items 82,102                101,479              
Adjusted Net Income as a percentage of Total Revenue 7.3% 8.9%

Glacier High School 2021-22 Financial Report As of 8/31/21
Budget



Category Actual Comments
Adopted Budget Working Actual
Budget Adjustments Budget Rev/Exp LCFF Calculator ADA of 302.25

Revenue (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date

State Aid Block Grant (LCFF) 8011 2,066,221                2,066,221 63,524                   
Education Protection Account "EPA" (LCFF) 8012 591,482                    591,482 -                         
In Lieu Prop Tax (LCFF) 8096 222,884                    222,884 12,955                   
Lottery 8560 60,148 60,148 -                         
Interest 8660 500 500 -                         
Mandate Block Grant 8550 7,257 7,257 -                         
One-time Funding 8550 0 0 -                         
State STRS Contribution on Behalf - Paper Trans 7690-8590 115,077 115,077 -                         STRS On Behalf Entry
Enhanced Learning Opportunities Grant 7425/6-8590 72,964 72,964 -                         Change to source of funding to Federal Funding From ELO
Other Local Revenue 8699 0 0 180                        
SPED Revenue (6500) 8792 199,667 199,667 7,672                     

Total Revenue 3,336,200 0 3,336,200             84,331 Total Revenue

Category Budget Actual Comments

Expense (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date

Salaries (Certificated and Classified) 1,461,938 1,461,938 128,612
Benefits (All Combined) 710,647 710,647 55,412
Total Salary & Benefits 2,172,585 0 2,172,585 184,024

Object
Instructional  (Func.1000) Code

Textbooks and Core Curricula 4100 19,208 19,208 3,218                     
Books and Ref Mat 4200 59,027 59,027 -                              
Instructional Supplies (>$500) 4300 95,430 95,430 6,504                     
Instructional Equipment ($500-$4900) 4400 133,458 133,458 9,537                     
Travel & Conference 5200 9,000 9,000 242                        
Contracted Services 5800 99,082 99,082 29,906                   
Communications 5900 8,877 8,877 2,303                     
Equipment 6400 -                                0 -                              

Building (Func. 8100)
Supplies 4300 17,210 17,210 1,034                     
Equipment 4400 6,234 6,234 3,974                     
Utilities 5500 15,577 15,577 5,202                     
Rentals, Leases & Repairs 5600 136,200 136,200 34,050                   
Custodial/Site Expense 5800 30,000 30,000 7,952                     
Equipment 6400 0 0 -                              

Facilities Construct(Func. 8500)
Site Improvement 6100 0 0 -                              
Building Improvements 6200 0 0 -                              

Administrative (Func. 2700)
Admin. Supplies 4300 8,000 8,000 2,182                     
Admin. Equipment 4400 510 510 2,272                     
Travel & Conference 5200 15,734 15,734 2,666                     
Service Memberships/ Fees 5300 14,077 14,077 5,400                     
Insurance 7200 5400 10,709 10,709 -                              
Contracted Services 5800 7,300 7,300 2,036                     
Contracted Services-Business Svc Fees 5800 70,335 70,335 -                              
Communications 5900 7,040 7,040 1,258                     
Equipment 6400 -                                0

Health Services (Func. 3120 &3140)
Contracted Services 5800 5,631 5,631 -                              

Food (Funct. 3700)
Food Costs 4700 2,820 2,820 140                        

Administrative (Func.7191)
Contracted Services -auditors 5800 17,860 17,860 -                              
General Administration (Func.7200/7300)
District Oversight Fee (1% of LCFF Rev) 5800 28,708 28,708 -                              
Business Services (3.5% of Rev) 5800 30,143 30,143 -                              

Fiscal Services (Func. 9200)
Special Education 5750 63,001 63,001 3,734                     

-                                                                                                                    
Total Expense 3,083,756                -                          3,083,756             307,635                 Total Expense

Revenue Less Expenses 252,444                   252,444                (223,304)               

Carryover from Prior Year (53,006)                    395,978                 342,972                Fund balance transfer from MHS and GHS

Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses -1.7% 11.1%
Ending Balance/Future Carryover 199,438                   595,416                
Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses 6.5% 19.3%

Net Income 252,444                    252,444                
Net Income as a percentage of Total Revenue 7.6% 7.6%
Extraordinary Items
One-time Expenditures 72,964                      -                          72,964                  
One-time Funding Income (72,964)                    -                          (72,964)                 

Total -                            -                          -                         

Net Income Adjusted for Extraordinary Items 252,444                   252,444                
Adjusted Net Income as a percentage of Total Revenue 7.6% 7.6%

Endeavor Charter School 2021-22 Financial Report As of 8/31/21
Budget



Category Actual Comments
Adopted Budget Working Actual
Budget Adjustments Budget Rev/Exp

Revenue (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date LCFF ADA
State Aid Block Grant 8011 3,416,176            -                              3,416,176             146,346                      MHS-229.13/GHS-92.63/ECS-302.25
EPA 8012 904,815               -                              904,815                 -                              
In Lieu Prop Tax 8096 1,672,150            -                              1,672,150             99,343                        
Lottery 8560 115,040               -                              115,040                 -                              
Interest 8660 2,500                    -                              2,500                     -                              
Mandate Block Grant 8550 15,561                  -                              15,561                   -                              
One-time Funding 8550 -                        -                              -                         -                              
State STRS Contribution on Behalf - Paper Transactio 8590 246,141               -                              246,141                 -                              
Emhanced Learning Opportunities Grant 8590 161,080               -                              161,080                 -                              
Other Local Revenue 8699 2,000                    -                              2,000                     190                             
SPED Revenue (6500) 8792 350,067               -                              350,067                 25,640                        

Total Revenue 6,885,530 -                              6,885,530             271,519 Total Revenue

Category Budget Actual Comments

Expenses (Annual) (Annual) (Annual) Year-to-date

Salaries (Certificated and Classified) 3,003,610 -                              3,003,610             291,749                      
Benefits (All Combined) 1,422,248 -                              1,422,248             119,912                      

Total Salary & Benefits 4,425,858 0 4,425,858 411,661
Object

Instructional  (Func.1000) Code
Textbooks and Core Curricula 4100 54,846 -                              54,846                   7,569                          
Books and Ref Mat 4200 74,343 -                              74,343                   -                              
Instructional Supplies (>$500) 4300 188,316 -                              188,316                 24,306                        
Instructional Equipment ($500-$4900) 4400 292,117 -                              292,117                 20,943                        
Travel & Conference 5200 14,500 -                              14,500                   342                             
Contracted Services 5800 213,600 -                              213,600                 75,573                        
Communications 5900 16,876 -                              16,876                   3,848                          
Equipment 6400 0 -                              -                         -                              

Building (Func. 8100)
Supplies 4300 47,280 -                              47,280                   1,956                          
Equipment 4400 8,230 -                              8,230                     8,280                          
Utilities 5500 27,874 -                              27,874                   5,222                          
Rentals, Leases & Repairs 5600 136,200 -                              136,200                 34,050                        
Custodial/Site Expense 5800 38,422 -                              38,422                   16,288                        
Equipment 6400 0 -                              -                         -                              

Facilities Construct (Func. 8500)
Site Improvement 6100 0 -                              -                         -                              
Building Improvements 6200 0 45,000                        45,000                   -                              Oakhurst Interior façade and storage shed construction 
Administrative (Func. 2700)
Admin. Supplies 4300 24,000 -                              24,000                   2,182                          
Admin. Equipment 4400 3,520 -                              3,520                     2,272                          
Travel & Conference 5200 30,044 -                              30,044                   4,929                          
Service Memberships/ Fees 5300 30,041 -                              30,041                   9,300                          
Insurance 5400 23,113 -                              23,113                   -                              
Contracted Services 5800 15,231 -                              15,231                   4,149                          
Contracted Services-Business Svcs 5800 145,399 -                              145,399                 -                              
Communications 5900 13,545 -                              13,545                   2,148                          
Equipment 6400 0 -                              -                         -                              

Health Services (Func. 3140)
Contracted Services 5800 34,024 -                              34,024                   -                              

Food (Funct. 3700)
Food Costs 4700 6,000 -                              6,000                     299                             

Administrative (Func.7100)
Contracted Services -auditors 5800 58,140 -                              58,140                   -                              

General Administration (Func.7200/7300)
District Oversight 1% 5800 59,347 -                              59,347                   -                              
Business Services (3.5% of Rev) 5800 62,313 -                              62,313                   -                              

Fiscal Services (Func. 9200)
Special Education 7141 90,861 -                              90,861                   3,734                          

Total Expense 6,134,040            45,000                        6,179,040             639,051                     Total Expense

Revenue Less Expenses 751,490               706,490                (367,532)$                  

Carryover from Prior Year 1,524,449            -                              1,524,449             
Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses 24.9% 24.7%
Ending Balance/Future Carryover 2,275,939            2,230,939             
Carryover as a Percentage of Total Expenses 37.1% 36.1%

Net Income 751,490               706,490                 
Net Income as a percentage of Total Revenue 10.9% 10.3%
Extraordinary Items
One Time Expenditures 161,080               45,000                        206,080                 
One-time Funding Income (161,080)              -                              (161,080)               

Total -                        45,000                        45,000                   

Net Rev. Adjusted for Extraordinary Items 751,490               751,490                
Adjusted Net Income as a percentage of Adj. Total Revenue 10.9% 10.9%

Western Sierra Charter Schools Combined 21-22 Financial Report As of 8/31/21
Budget



Potential WSCS Board Meeting Dates for 2021-2022 School Year 
 
 
September 14, 2021 
November 9, 2021 
January 11, 2022 
March 8, 2022 
May 17, 2022 
June 14, 2022 


	Agenda 9-14-2021
	Board Minutes for 8-11-2021
	Warrant Listing 6.5.21 - 6.30.21 ReqPay12
	Warrant Listing 7.01.21 - 9.7.21 ReqPay12
	WSCS Independent Study Policy v.2 Revised Clean
	WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS

	WSCS Independent Study Policy v.2 Revised Mark-Up
	WESTERN SIERRA CHARTER SCHOOLS

	Student Admissions and Enrollment (Clean DRAFT) 
	I. Introduction
	II. Admission and Requirements for Admission
	Admission Eligibility and Requirements
	 All students must have successfully completed their education through the grade level prior to the grade in which they are seeking to enroll.
	 All students must have been fully immunized and present the appropriate health examination record in accordance with the California Health and Safety Code.
	 All Kindergarten students must be age 5 on or before September 1 of the school year in which he/she seeks enrollment.
	 No student may concurrently attend a private school that charges the student’s family for tuition.
	 All students and their parents or guardians must read, agree to and sign the Schools’ Master Independent Study Agreement.
	 All students shall be documented as residents of the county the school is authorized in or an adjacent county.
	 Parents/guardians/caregivers shall attend an information meeting or its equivalent.  At the Schools’ discretion this meeting may be by phone.


	IV. Enrollment Process and Guidelines

	Student Admissions and Enrollment (Mark-Up DRAFT) 
	I. Introduction
	II. Admission and Requirements for Admission
	Admission Eligibility and Requirements
	 All students must have successfully completed their education through the grade level prior to the grade in which they are seeking to enroll.
	 All students must have been fully immunized and present the appropriate health examination record in accordance with the California Health and Safety Code.
	 All Kindergarten students must be age 5 on or before September 1 of the school year in which he/she seeks enrollment.  If a student turns five years of age after September 1 during the school year, that student may be eligible for admission on a cas...
	 All students must be at least age 6 (by September 1 of the school year in which he/she seeks enrollment in first grade, with some exceptions in accordance with the Board’s age-admission policy and in accordance with law), and not exceeding age 19, u...
	 No student may concurrently attend a private school that charges the student’s family for tuition.
	 All students and their parents or guardians must read, agree to and sign the Schools’ Master Independent Study Agreement.
	 All students shall be documented as residents of the county the school is authorized in or an adjacent county.
	 Complete applications for admission must be timely submitted to the School no later than the deadline published for that school year.
	 Parents/guardians/caregivers shall attend an pre-admission information meeting or its equivalent.  At the Schools’ discretion this meeting may be by phone.
	 Parents/guardians/caregivers shall attend a school tour


	IV. Enrollment Process and Guidelines

	Allocation Policy AMENDED 091421
	Tuff Shed Quote
	Resolution Reserve adjustment 091421
	Fund Balance Transfer Worksheet for Board on 091421
	Sheet1

	Board Resolution Fund Balance Transfers 091421
	Draft Federal Grant Funds Uniform Guidance Policy.pdf
	Capital Expenditures
	Conflict of Interest
	Cash Management
	Personnel
	Records
	Audits
	Allowable Costs
	Period of Performance

	WSCS Budget Package 21-22 as of 083121
	MHS Budget 21-22 as of 083121.pdf
	MHSPresented

	GHS Budget 21-22 as of 083121.pdf
	GHSPresented

	ECS Budget 21-22 as of 083121.pdf
	ECSPresented

	WSCS Budget 21-22 as of 083121.pdf
	Combined


	Potential WSCS Board Meeting Dates for 2021

